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FILED

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT APR - 6 2009
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA Clerk, U.s. pi
Baﬁkrbp'tc 'sé”Ct and
CITIZENS FOR RESPONSIBILITY AND y Lourts
ETHICS IN WASHINGTON
1400 Eye Street, N.W., Suite 450
Washington, D.C. 20005

)
)
)
)
)
Plaintiff, )
) Case: 1:09-cv-00633
v. ) Assigned To : Roberts, Richard W.
) Assign. Date : 4/6/2009
BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF THE )
FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM )
20th Street and Constitution Avenue, N.W. )
)
)
)
)

Washington, D.C. 20551

Description: FOIA/Privacy Act

Defendant.

COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE AND DECLARATORY RELIEF

1. This is an action under the Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA”), 5 U.S.C. § 552, as
amended, challenging the failure of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (“the
Board”) to respond to the expedited request of plaintiff for disclosure of records concerning
those entities to which the Board has provided loans and/or financial assistance under the
Federal Reserve Act or any other authority of the Board.

2. This case seeks declaratory relief that the Board is in violation of the FOIA, 5 U.S.C.
§ 552(a)(6)(E)(D), for failing to respond to plaintiff’s expedited request for records and injunctive
relief ordering defendant Board to process immediately the requested records in their entirety.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

3. This Court has both subject matter jurisdiction over this action and personal

jurisdiction over the Board pursuant to 5 U.S.C. §§ 552(a)(4)(B) and 552(a)(6)(C)(I). This Court

also has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331. Venue lies in this district
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under 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B).
PARTIES

4. Plaintiff Citizens for Responsibility and Ethics in Washington (“CREW?”) is a
nonprofit corporation, organized under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. CREW
is committed to protecting the right of citizens to be informed about the activities of government
officials and to ensuring the integrity of government officials. CREW seeks to empower citizens
to have an influential voice in government decisions and in the governmental decision-making
process through the dissemination of information about public officials, federal agencies and
entities, and their actions. To advance its mission, CREW uses a combination of research,
litigation, and advocacy. As part of its research, CREW uses government records made available
to it under the FOIA.

5. CREW has invested considerable organizational resources in pushing the U.S.
government to take issues of ethics and responsibility seriously. CREW monitors closely the
laws and rules applicable to government agencies and government officials.

6. CREW is harmed by the Board’s failure to process CREW’s FOIA request on an
expedited basis, because that failure hampers CREW’s ability to satisfy the compelling public
need for full, accurate, and current information on how the Board has distributed more than $2
trillion to private financial institutions as part of its expanded lending programs. Absent this
critical information, CREW cannot advance its mission of educating the public to ensure the
public continues to have a vital voice in government and, in particular, in how taxpayer funds are

allotted in this time of great financial crisis.
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7. Defendant Board is an agency within the meaning of 5 U.S.C. § 552(f) and 5 U.S.C. §
702. The Board is the federal agency with possession and control of the requested records and is
responsible for fulfilling plaintiff’s FOIA request.

STATUTORY FRAMEWORK
The Freedom of Information Act

8. The FOIA, 5 U.S.C. § 552, requires agencies of the federal government to release
requested records to the public unless one or more specific statutory exemptions apply.

9. An agency must respond to a party making a FOIA request within 20 working days,
notifying that party of at least the agency’s determination whether or not to fulfill the request and
of the requester’s right to appeal the agency’s determination to the agency head. 5 U.S.C. §
552(a)(6)(AXD).

10. In “unusual circumstances,” an agency may delay its response to a FOIA request or
appeal, but must provide notice and “the date on which a determination is expected to be
dispatched.” 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(B).

11. The FOIA also requires agencies to promulgate regulations providing for expedited
processing of FOIA requests where the requester has demonstrated a “compelling need” as well
as “other cases determined by the agency.” 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(E)(I). The FOIA defines
“compelling need” as including requests “made by a person primarily engaged in disseminating
information” where there is an “urgency to inform the public concerning actual or alleged
Federal Government activity.” Id. at § 552(a)(6)(E)(v)(1I).

12. Agencies are required to make a determination on a request for expedition within 10

calendar days “after the date of the request,” 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(E)(ii)(I), and to give
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“expeditious consideration” to administrative appeals of such determinations. Id. at §
552(a)(6)(E)(i1){I).

13. Agency decisions to deny or affirm denial of a request for expedition are subject to
judicial review “based on the record before the agency at the time of the determination.” 5
U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(E)(iii).

14. A requester is not required to exhaust administrative remedies prior to seeking

judicial review of an agency’s denial of a request for expedited processing. See, e.g., Am. Civil
Liberties Union v. Dep’t of Justice, 321 F.Supp.2d 24, 28-29 (D.D.C. 2004).

15. The Board has promulgated regulations providing for expedited processing of FOIA
requests where the requester is able to demonstrate a “compelling need” or the Board itself has
determined to expedite the request. 12 C.F.R. § 261.13(c). The regulations further define
“compelling need” as including situations where there is an “urgency to inform the public
concerning actual or alleged Board activity.” Id. at § 261.13(c)(1)(ii). All requesters seeking
expedition must certify that the basis for their request is true and correct to the best of their
knowledge and belief. Id. at § 261.13(c)(1).

16. Board regulations require the agency to grant or deny a request for expedited
processing “within 10 calendar days of the date of the request.” Id. at § 261.13(c)(2). If
expedition is granted, the request will be processed “as soon as practicable.” 12 C.F.R. §
261.13(c).

17. This Court has jurisdiction, upon receipt of a complaint, “to enjoin the agency from
withholding agency records and to order the production of any agency records improperly

withheld from the complainant.” 5 U.S.C. §552(a)(4)(B).
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FACTS UNDERLYING PLAINTIFF’S PRAYER FOR RELIEF

18. During the past 18 months or so the Board has taken a number of steps in response to
the growing economic crisis. These steps include the creation of a number of new lending
facilities: the Primary Dealer Credit Facility, the Term Securities Lending Facility, and the Term
Auction Facility. The Board also has made changes to the Discount Window lending

19. These actions were designed to enhance the stability of the financial system, increase
the willingness of financial institutions to extend credit, and ease conditions in inter-bank
lending markets.

20. According to the Board, providing short-term credit to financial institutions through
these measures exposes the Board to minimal credit risk, particularly because the loans the
Board makes are short-term, over-collateralized, and made with recourse to the borrowing entity.
Private institutions seeking to use the Board’s lending facilities must post collateral to the Board
in exchange for the loan of government funds.

21. By letter dated February 4, 2009, Sen. Bernard Sanders (I-VT) requested that Board
Chairman Ben S. Bernanke provide him with information about the trillions of dollars of loans
and other assistance the Board has provided financial institutions and other entities. The
requested information included the identities of the businesses, individuals, or entities to which
the Board has provided assistance over the last two years; the type of assistance provided; the
value or amount of that assistance; the terms of any expected repayment; and the specific
rationale for providing the assistance. As Sen. Sanders noted, “Given the size of these
commitments it is incomprehensible that the American people have not received specific details

about them.”
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22. To date the Board has not provided Sen. Sanders with the information he requested.
During subsequent testimony before the Senate Budget Committee, Chairman Bernanke refused
to identify the financial institutions that have received taxpayer-backed loans and other financial
assistance from the Board, claiming that revealing such information would be
“counterproductive.”

23. By contrast, the Treasury Department has identified the banks and other financial
institutions that have received bailout funds from Treasury.

Plaintiff’s FOIA Request and Request for Expedited Processing

24. On March 3, 2009, plaintiff sent a FOIA request by facsimile to defendant Board
seeking records, regardless of format and including electronic records and information,
identifying each business, individual, or entity to which the Board has provided loans and/or
other financial assistance from March 24, 2008 to the present under the third undesignated
section 13 of the Federal Reserve Act, 12 U.S.C. § 343, or any other authority of the Board,
including the Discount Window and the Term Auction Facility. For each recipient of such
financial assistance CREW requested the same information requested in Sen. Sanders’ February
4,2009 letter: (1) the type of financial assistance provided; (2) the value or amount of the
financial assistance provided; (3) the date on which the assistance was provided; (4) the specific
terms of any expected repayment; and (5) the rationale for providing each instance of financial
assistance.

25. CREW sought a waiver of fees associated with processing its request given that the
request concerns the operations of the federal government, the disclosures likely will contribute

to a better understanding of relevant government procedures in a significant way, and the request
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primarily and fundamentally is for non-commercial purposes. Specifically, the requested records
are likely to shed light on the processes the Board uses in determining those financial institutions
that will receive loans and other forms of financial assistance and whether those obligations are
being made prudently and in the best interests of the American taxpayers. The public’s interest
in the requested documents is particularly pronounced in light of the new expansive powers the
Board now has, the ongoing financial crisis, and its effects on the American economy.

26. In addition, CREW sought expedited processing of its FOIA request for the express
purpose of disseminating any responsive documents to the public in view of the severity of the
current financial crisis, the growing public concern over the government’s provision of massive
amounts of financial assistance to troubled financial institutions, and the compelling need to
inform the public about how and to which institutions the Board has obligated federal funds. As
Sen. Sanders has explained, “transparency and accountability are critical to maintaining the
credibility of the federal government during these difficult times, and critical to the orderly
operation of our democratic system.” As required by 12 C.F.R. § 261.13(c)(1), CREW certified
that the basis for its request for expedition is true and correct to the best of its counsel’s
knowledge and belief.

27. To date, the Board has not acted on CREW’s request for expedition, despite the
passage of more than 10 calendar days.

28. To date, the Board has neither produced a single document to CREW nor withheld or
otherwise accounted for any responsive documents. Nor has the Board informed plaintiff of an
anticipated date for completing the processing of plaintiff’s FOIA request.

29. The only communication CREW has received from the Board is a letter dated March



Case 1:09-cv-00633-RWR  Document 1  Filed 04/06/2009 Page 8 of 10

6, 2009, from Jeanne M. McLaughlin, Manager, Freedom of Information Office, acknowledging
receipt of CREW’s FOIA request on March 3, 2009.

30. The statutory time limit for the Board to respond to plaintiff’s request has run out
and plaintiff has constructively exhausted administrative remedies. 5 U.S.C. §552(a)(6)(C); see
also Judicial Watch v. Rossotti, 326 F.3d 1309, 1310 (D.C. Cir. 2003); Oglesby v. U.S. Dep’t of
the Army, 920 F.2d 57, 62 (D.C. Cir. 1990).

PLAINTIFF’S CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

CLAIM ONE
(Failure to Expedite)

31. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference all preceding paragraphs.

32. Plaintiff demonstrated it met the requirements for expediting its FOIA request.

33. To date, plaintiff has not received a substantive response to its request for expedition
from defendant Board.

34. Therefore, defendant violated FOIA’s mandate to expedite the processing of
plaintiff’s FOIA request. 5 U.S.C. §552(a)(6)(E)(ii).

35. Plaintiff is entitled to injunctive and declaratory relief with respect to the expedited

release and disclosure of the requested records.

CLAIM TWO
(Failure to Produce Records)

36. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference all preceding paragraphs.
37. Plaintiff properly asked for records within the custody and control of the Board.
38. The Board wrongfully withheld agency records requested by plaintiff by failing to

comply with the statutory time limit for the processing of plaintiff’s FOIA request.
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39. Plaintiff has exhausted thé applicable administrative remedies with respect to
defendant Board’s wrongful withholding of the requested records.

40. Plaintiff is entitled to injunctive and declaratory relief with respect to the expedited
release and disclosure of the requested documents

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, plaintiff respectfully requests that this Court:

(1) Issue a declaration that plaintiff is entitled to expedited processing of its FOIA
request submitted to defendant Board on March 3, 2009;

(2) Issue a declaration that plaintiff is entitled to a complete waiver of processing fees
associated with its FOIA request submitted to defendant Board on March 3, 2009;

(3) Order defendant Board to process immediately the requested records in their entirety;

(4) Order defendant Board upon completion of such expedited processing to disclose the
requested records and make copies available to plaintiff;

(5) Provide for expeditious proceedings in this action;

(6) Retain jurisdiction of this action to ensure the processing of plaintiff’s FOIA request
is expedited and no agency records are wrongfully withheld;

(7) Award plaintiff reasonable attorney fees and litigation costs in this action pursuant to
5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(E); and

(8) Grant such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.

Respectfully submitted,

MM

Anne L. Weismann
(D.C. Bar No. 298190)
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Dated: April 6, 2009

Melanie Sloan

(D.C. Bar No. 434584)

Citizens for Responsibility and Ethics
in Washington

1400 Eye Street, N.-W., Suite 450

Washington, D.C. 20005

Phone: (202) 408-5565

Fax: (202) 588-5020

Attorneys for Plaintiff

10
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